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o I 4,
1. I AMNS GERIEAT GFeedl GEA 3
. HIYRUEHT GEERAT AT SN 3
3. wiame I T e we ¥
Y. VD] UREd, |dEd T 39T Y
Y. IE Ale AIURUENET eI Ty &
& TEN AlYS AEIRIHHT T5aTdsh Aidh! dhaie 5

TE ALA. R059/05R Bl AMS Fdaad

©.  @EMREAT Yiidaed a9 i EEwe R0
c. el (G weer) demee e
R. foue uz
Q0. HFHI FRT I AR el Hraigeas! ®ial Ye,
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NEXT ‘ HOLDINGLE’ R0t q/08R

Fe Bivewd Riviee

Hiog HEferd: BLAA, | THA BISATE
TIT H.09-%% 03303, Email: info@nextholdings.com.np

TG SNeh ARG qFawet qal

(7 Teah YT [i:R053,0%,,08 ) HRER aA%

(I Ue g R 053,0%,%3 W) i AE
AR ILE ARTITAET,
Jaee difeesa ffteesr ffd R053 /0% /00 T THHT ToAaE WARHT kb FufAER FEEw
T A FraReEr e S, I T T S qUBl HEET UF R0§3 Bl IRT &6 9T [HuHmEed
ATIR AT HETTHIAETH] AHHI qT JURATHT R AT T TH1Id TGH § |
e FraRvE g fAfd, Twa T ea:
faft: R0z @ I IR T (AETER 93 IHEAL R0R &), WEER |
TaY: I3 oy.30 = |
T THIHTRT FATh, STEER |
WERIENH IS TR fwee:
&) G TEAERe:
1. GIF WHADH! ThaE ALAFSTA T Tqg ALA.R05]/5R Bl To@H HIAH! Fddqd I
FART T I T qea=aar |
3. TEOUEAFH! F(daaT Aled HHHD! ALA.R05 /53 TFAHT AT T Aial AR AR A Bam,
T YATE (5o TFdeT e A7mee Ju gahd T Gid T Feee |
3. HFOA UT R0&3 HI TH 199 ATAR ALA. R0GR,/53 HI AN TEUNEHH! FHARh T T Fohr
e e 19 Jedd SISkl T I T FEewerdr |
Y. Taa eAaHH! ARk T avareHr |
g) fafw yeeRe:
. YT b Aed TAUl SATEATHT QMG T o TAD] qeai-ad Th1 T4l [Hawmaeis ava-ad
o Seires T e
R. YEd 97 T HIAEARAT AUH! GENETH BT o A Fewgrr 90 deieAst Hae yoa Heem
FAGH TN T FAAH FRAAS AT T T GF-gHT |
) fafere

oo gl AT
HE G

I 9T WAHHTIBT AR HFIIT %l_ol'mé?f www.nextholdings.com.np T INEE FAAT T 9, WTU@TIT
qrd T g A T |
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NEXT ‘ HOLDINGU? Rocq/0tR

HIRUEAT FE QAT S
q. AMH FEIRITEAHAT W o AST g A HETIWIEeeel G HEAT T bl AT
AMETS TUCT FAYA, ATE URET Gorl AR IREITA (FEd STl AR a1 g
AU TR=aTd) e IERE Juedd g1 g |

2. v (et s T = SreRaee av SR SRt use sath g T it
(FEY) BRI w8 FFOAET A Frafed, T, BIOATSHT TAT & g eaT HReaar @3
ST YAITE EAl T G T | AR A T T€q@d Wed e Al a1 T e a8y
Jeci@ HOAT TAHETS F g5 |

3. U SRee UHWRET oS Wi () s it s afgen Rust ded wee e
Wl SHERT Socld@ WE igodll Wadl 3l g ATIHT dedh edll Zai g U] Wadiel Areaam
e 5|

Y. At AERUEHHAT AW 7 19T &7 TARa HeTqwiae] GuIede JuRdd wE el Wbl
Juteafd qRawMr &q@d 1] 91 |

Y. Jureafd gRawr @ 3.30 = 3R gean @G |

§. 9T SHEBIAH! AR BB S HEfed, T, HEACHl qrd Teq g1 aqd g |
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JFce gifeewd for
qFATA, FTSHEE |

(FHFIT U, R0&3 B TR ©Q(3) &7 Fraf-ad 29 a1 qraoEw T ST o)

it goaTts afffd
e gifeegd .
TFAT, FHISHTST |

Ffeeed 1. #1 ToRefw! BREdr 2063 /0% /3% T WAANEH B (AEIARX S8 93, R0R8)
BT TEN AME  AORUENET WI/ET qhale Yt T W fomer @

.......................................... T H oo TS IS TGHT G/ |
ArH: H:

TP T O A ¥R AT 9 .

a¥dgd TH: TTq9d:

fafa: EGIGE

e wRAR fres &t T Afega R 1 SeReh A awdrs R T T 9 |
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NEXT ’ HOLDINGLE’ 0% q/0GR
HFD! URAT, qET T I
HFHIRT IRFT (Introduction)

Jaree Bifeg e fof, Tarerar fafier ST TRTHT 9 IEIAeT Are TId HFIAT 87 | HTawIel TaTeish! AT
TRFTIATE MRAGT TER ATET I WHifdee B ¢ Faf Tedaveeds] TR s qean
T WM AT FEEATH BT SHARIATE TS T A o GO UETs G S A Weed
&% Aeprel wfaher WIod T JLTBT Y A TS ATEEE 7 |

T B AT, G, e geee, B G SRl @ SeEdl WHdE eIl T 9Rha weii
T A caiE Ay qun afve e R aeEm st e g oo

qET (Goals)

FHHIAID] AET T, PFHAR T &7 TR S cqadiid dig aar dAde Tdiiea griea
T WH G | FHIA ATEAE T TeAqTg (RESEARCH and DATA) AT seia fefar wBean wiha 93e
TIHIT ST Fafr 18 Fefeedrs A1is €06 geM, Haeadicas € 41 s=re e Hd g
| 0 Ayl qe qEEET AT WU SHaEeEdrs Wik, B T g ednt e
T A R, e wig aer AT AGa—7H1 HhRIcHsE T9E [6edR T a6 3§ |

I (Objectives)

TFEE Beeqd 1. FT THE ILIUEE (FTEaR wHl G

o BRI AT qA cqEAEE Rugar gREE T B Semr uwn e T afiw
[GEEKEE

o UCHIHAl FFIAEEAS TaXATILNA, T TeTdicHE T Tdca A0S eI €A @™ T |

o TIT TYIEEEH RIHIHT A TS A RS, Wi wafy qar el aifde R
RIRICIERCE

e ToF AT, A X WHINE SOREIAcAeTS ATCHATY T SaeEd T Rraed e wwe
EIAT LB A= €A T |
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NEXT ‘ HOLDINGU? R0%q/0E8R
Tl At ATIRUATHT AR A-qed
ARTNT A HETIHESTRE,

TSATAF ARTHT ATAFT SATAT qAT T ARENT THATE T FHEINHT AT AN ATEROTETHT

o0

Blfdes T@Nd T+ vy |

ATSH! T AT ATMUEH ATIRUTATHT Foaadh AT Thale Aid®d a4 R059/05R & aAltd
iTea, ¥ i el qa Aaea®b B ASAEEd! Qed ATHN Teee qHE T T
FIA TG |

THEE Bee3q [AeE HAHH THY AMUH [GHEH ANEH T8 ILAH] 99 @R [0,
SRS T YAHAH A€ [Ud: AT, Foll, T, Bed, SR SUNEE ATH TIT
T, T AT TR T T4 A SSRAT BT BN Ed TR FRER T ILad [ Robg
ST 3R T TS IS FHFIAIHT T AT TAMUT I FHFOIclls [arT= SISRAT geidbd TS 3539
fga ffd R0zq @@R 6 TG gfedsw fiffide HFEHET TR 9 T4t SO TEET TWaHT G

T HTeRRy BRI qed Ieed aferdl Gof G i 1 wegferd, gifEE T R i
FTEIT HIW TS AMHHAECTS ST Adhel Y& T Wbl g | BHiel Gial deiaeh! giawher srea1
Ao wlawerars wafissar e RrEmut Fok, Sifem sqaeaes T geEETs Saeed! e
T T R T Rl S R e e T e g |

ETTGTH FHFIHAIC AT THT ATAHIET IRATSTT T Frqieedh! BT wereen Faer: qge &8 T
g | T BBl ATEAHT HFEIAID] ARG AULT ATAN LRIUHT HCA G BT Fhid T
TRAATEEHT TS TR &1 ATH B Seer@d B=ir GoR g1t T5a1 7 0 €94
e Wl g | AA. 3059/05% FEAAT TR U T, UR.5Y FUS T HA &, ¥.¥© g T
ST ORI AT T T GY.3E HUS WHMT AT HEIH! IRAE TIRAT T, L &.GY FE,
TET TERAT 3.3 HUS T A T, 1.6% FHAS T TFAT §9.03 FHUS AN Wbl g 9 A4,
05q/0CR W %. §0.RC G GT ATHT A Wl G |

T FHFID] HEd T eabl [fg @iel Saagd Adeer (90 H.an) o1 A & AfFad =
THT T A 2053 o Pl aen qrde @ g | IR T e gegl gEERe g yadd
ARG STt AT (WY 4R W) o fBgd Sedee aawi, B @ie B gvEar (ppal,
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NEI\T‘ : = R059/0CR

oI TR AT GHET AT T UTH T ATAIHT A R SHe€rds weEr (Consortium
Loan Agreement) AT = S EETa) g |

R T, QIS o R vatdd agl g v SefEEE e (2.9 W) o e g9
ATAT T WTH T IH ATASHID] AT GHHE WS AASAID] Grredd] AT Widaad Al-ad
FRUHT ! T RIS AAreEReiid qRE Uidas (IEE) TR H1d e Aa€ml W adr a1
forgre wiferper et g @fe feht Twsiar (ppa) #1 AR wmEE RUH g o

Y T AW HEAE T WH RivE TR [, W o et wir, ue RaRw f, o
REE fr. anfes! i w@e 1@ av w1 gaR 7@ FaEqH I WhHl THHK /ST a6g |

THEAT Sl Tt T FEATFT AT AT g AT G AN, sqaias, I B
&, IO A oY W gt 8T AT Wous AYcas A9 Bl HEOE G0 O W0 G|
ATSTRT Fiaeddl T qREdaeia A1de ATdraRvTAT TRERI], Gema ¥ SRad sqaedrad dAc~d Hecadul
WH HAAE TAHHAT €3 HEHBT qaeamas qureliens 93¢ aHee ATH g | SoRaees!
YEAEETS SATAT ek BT A3 SqARd T YAEHN T oo Uiaeg =i |

HCHHT, HFOAITS A T R AT A Mg O TR HET IS IR el qUIS e
forame, S0 T WA A el aeaETE oAk g | WIS Bl e d WHebT SN SHIETRT,
eerdr T wfdegarer @ Hwrid grqel HHd wdeeas G geEe G aeeg | @l
o Fepraes, wut yawE S aur e GeareE, TR, Sl aur a7 qel G
Tedriie® i FHawdl <aeh g | AEeaa Fefeed! MeedR e, GednT T Gl duaT M6 g9
FEYUl WETHESaEEeTs S=aa T 114 Uoaeih AHigRT Jedd aits Jiaae qaor gedeee qm
FARA T ATAET MRETET B9 g g |

sty iR
FAH AETET
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NEXT ‘ HOLDINGU? Rocq/0tR

AR Bleegd ToT.
HFAT U R0§3 Bl THT 10% &l IUEHT (¥) FHieH

A4, R05q/05R
AR TATEA HRTIAERT,

AA. R05 /0GR F @I IREAHH Alaad TAAHT AT FEAEeE ATHEGAH] AT 42T
T HEOAT BT aWH W T ST q9r AN ATAr AR B AN GHeusT B U

053 B FATIT ATER UG THISHH] [FE0Re JeT TMUH g |

%, . R059/05R Hl HRARD! Mead®
AMdF a4 205 9/08R W IF HFAD! B W FFATaR ©Hl g |

q. R IR

T FEADT R053 AU AT GEHAT AHd Go T, 9,00,00,00,000 | — (TF I AT, Y
T ©&,¥%,00,000 |— (TR FIT TqRE @@ wEA) T AT G T 4%,54,00,000 | —
(IFETET S = oG BUAT) @R G | 9T TR0 Go 9% ST s SR Eede e
WU 7 |

R. Tl faa=r
A, R059/05R B FTAT HFIAIH! GHIRY AT I [FaT I8 YR @Hl § |
aide o (®.) | e o (%) | UREfid (@wEr) | iderd

e R05q/05R R050/059 (%)

qHRy

Rax gt RY¥,3%,]45 RY,5Y¥,3¥0 (9,¥5,353) | (X.9Y)

T Weh! FH (Sm) 9,5%,20,000 | 9,5%,20,000

TEANTT T q,¥,43,403 | R¥,5,3%,&33 | (R3,Y¥,5&,040) | (R¥.RL)

[ERIRERaIS] ¥q,00,50R%Y | ©,8%,00,000 | 33IY,TORYY | ¥2.9¥

ST Sl qFr XY, R0,4%,08% | 3¥,8%5,93,%&3 ?,0%,¥%,59% .95

g w

T AT ULHT 9%,%0,3&,2%& | 1%,3§,93,00% ¥,9%,93,560 RE.RE
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= HT T ¥?,09,43Y 36,568,058 3R,54,¥¥Y §3.00
[ENIRECEIRS 9,20,59,90% | 9,3%&,R9,035 89,60,08Y |  X&.90
g FHI §,99,25Y% &9,%00 §,0¥,¥o% | ©RU.43
T AT WA ¥%,50,¥¥S | 3,05,0033c | (3,45,9%,950) | (53.53)
STFT AT S 3R,8Y¥,35,09% | R0,05,R3,33% JY,5,¥Y¥,053 9R.0G
SFT qHIR §9,39,20,8%0 | ®¥,5§,00,58Y%  93,3%,5%,5%% | .43
T ISl qm =

W

AT ST 4%,54,00,000 | 3Y,8%,5§,000 | 3¥,0Y,¥,000 £1.9%
AR T IS 9,0%,36,¥¥Y | 9,93,2C,563 | (§,05,63,33%)| (54.3%)
ST B 15,59%,3%Y% c8,20,5%0 cORT¥EY | 29.33
AT AT G §R,00,4%,0%% | ¥3,50,0%,403 | 95,8§,50,3%Y% ¥R.5Y¥
iR T

T HT A (Deferred Tax) ¥%,9%Y RE,4ER R9,93% ©3.23
g fordereie e ¥,¥9,¥9q,64% | §,3%,25,33% (T4 3)
A BT TR ¥,¥9,29,453 | §3§,R6,53Y  (9,05,48,308) | (35.¥%)
=g R

[ENRIRIT] QE,%0,¥0% | ¥,6%,0% ¥%5 (YEIUX0TR) | (28.4Y%)
T e 9&,40,¥0% | ¥,8%,0%,¥R% (¥&¥%05%) | (]&.4%)
T TR ISt o e §9,39,20,0%0 | X¥,5&,00,5R% |  q3,3%,5%,5%% | 43

3. ). ATF, R059/0GR BT Avcd YEHPH! TNk (a0 AT TR MU HFIieh! GIed SHHTa

[ [EERul AT A BT HIH AT T HIH FA arh
q. | Ry egmmEr Heor k. 30,00,00,000 |- | 3¥,00,00,000 |- §,00,00,000 | -
R. qure fFEfew fo 9,09,00,000 | - 9,09,00,000 | - -
3. | s e fo §,00,00,000 | - - §,00,00,000 | -
Y. | River for. 4,00,00,000 |- | 4,00,00,000 | - -
¥, | 3 e 3,30,00,000 | - 9,¥%,00,000 | - 5Y,00,000 | -
G | Yol T S 2,40,00,000 | - | 2.90,00,0001-
. | UFTE eEgr e A=e WL | 4,35,00,000 |- | ,35,00,000 | -




NEXT | Howomes Ro1/053
%, | Jaee quids e 9,04,00,000 |- 4,04,00,000 | - i
Q. | W a& TaT wrf. 3,00,00,000 | - %4,00,000 | - 1,0%,00,000 | -
q0. | SITHT T IHT 9%%,2,0,000 | -
SFAT 4%,93,20,000 |- | ¥0,50,00,000|-| 9§,0¥%,00,000 |-

. Rife TR & ffiee

&g erEgEr o fafiics Qo0& e Fal w§ ure faga wifgsor w fia 00y Wim =%
T forga @i ot aeenar w9, ffd R0z0 W W 9% /T ARSI AR RSy g6 gratiEe
for. & i soeea eEiar w8 @l R06R w@W U TR (HRE Rq AR aafEn)
T G YA BT FEI T ATATAR! Headworks ¥ Water Way AT UTHTehT GRETT T TREEHHT
T 78 fR @ e G et qanher et R | s W g e s
FREH! AU e AT 2053 A FEN Q@ T 98 T AT AU AUHT AET AR
YA &l qHT §aT ATAG Bgd geaed [ Fifds 2053 9 WI T 063 A EH
TR G |

g, 9 [Aew for,

Toe FARS Rfee R0 Ao IdT WUET TUEE GRdl AR BHE a9 TeISe AT
I T BEEYCHA FEH B W Good Manufacturing Practice(GMP) HIFIAT WTH AT
FEAE Zoh1g At TATEET a1 SAaT Aot dffresT [Halfe ¢ gdiel qor Sk Aies (e
T AT ) JEAE TS AUHT F | el A0el RS fieger €0 WwaT ol Yebiahl AMeies Feara
T QYo TR FE FHANEEAE UGN Y& TS a9 SIHX R d9Rh [Re Aead Aed
e Adies TR S T GEre T8 AUHT | 98 R BT aieedl B e a9
THR BH G |

qurer Rfew fatres
TR FTSHTISY

£k faa=or AT R059/5R AT 050/59 gitafaa gfaera
9 AT AT 900 000 000,00 %q%,000,000,00 93.%%
R aAfw R e

3| o IR g 900 000 000,00 %4%,000,000,00 92.%%
¥ | SAIET & %0,54% R94.00 ¥R,0R4,933.00 ¥ .45
Y | STEET eI 330,300 000,00 39R,055,¥5%.00 Q.50

qo
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% ST TR 340,%90,300.00 9¥3,54¥,%¥93.00 9y . ¥'3
X AP AR 99,44%,%3%.00 (9%,208 %%, 00) 9%5.0%
& | Ee AT 4,50% ¥%5.00 (Rq,4%%,09%.00) 9R%.5%

T, Rl

ffoer wax for, 046 Ao Tl WUHRT AUl GEHT Wbl gidbtel Ual Yebe HEIAl Bl |
AES BlIHE Hal, ATAFTT IGR TN Td IS, HSHd S¥THUad, Tadd qd1 s qded
IS, A&l FNIT [Fee, ifd qur TdaHT Trdedeed] il @9 IS, URIA Fa&Euenmad &
THHT 8T TS JaAe® GHAC TS ATHN G| FFOAl AR GaAT AOETSATAR Toel &
Mg Tfadrey, ATl TO TEA UEAC, URIEA WAgE Sen T suaRdd wEed e
HIETWATE ATl GO q AU Aiiferss &raT ad qRiem, 9Raal T aqad gars o yae T
AUHT G | TF HFIIR] G aUeTh! B A€l 99 YhR Bl g |

fafoe TR fatves

YRaaTR, FTEATIST
9 faaur AT R059/5% A R050/59 gfeafia afqara
q AT ST %00 000 000,00 40,000 000,00 %0.00
3| uf R SR
3 THAT IR ‘fiﬁ ¥ 00 000 000,00 40,000 000,00 %0.00
¥ | SR B 149,5199,559.00 330,0%% %9%.00 (43.99)
X | ST S 45 Y 31 ¥,R¥%. 00 924,950,53%.00 (R&.9%)
% STFRT STl T%0,44%,94%. 00 YU, 1R Y,4%3.00 95.0%
© | T el ATRT R%,545,045.00 3R,5%%,499.00 %9
5 | g% AR 94, % %3, ¥%%.00 %,2,0%,084.00 9:3.59

. st Rt fo.

A BReadt fifiee smgfe yfafd, Toedda F==n qaref aur S=quigy Aveve Jqar e gawreT
AeHIElcTd T TETHEEH Scaad qdl ol T T ATIR 0¥ AI@H qdt 9E B vo A
1 AT JeaET qdr fosht T8 AT | WA T, e, Aight anmaet B se
STl ST ATl JURAfd fEEAR T 939 AER OAsIs WIgHT Fiwa wfrsy H asiAr wars
TANAT WH! G | AN SHaedraT el TE7 Sk a7 safead foaeer Tsies! Sed e S
TS HATSATEE FeuTa AieBeor T8 ATUa! o w ERI et ovar, T € Redar SanT

11
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NE}{T ‘ HOL "_"?INLL-.T': 305 q/0E8R
TS ATCHATT T8 WERT SANT SAAT g T Waeadt el €0 Fede At sl §

| TF FHFIART BT adged! B dEeer 39 YER Whl g |

= feftgerr fatves

TEHEH FISHTUST
.9 fera=ur T j059/5R .9 R050/59 gRafda wiaea
q | 9ROl 4 0¥ 000 000,00 | Y0% 000000 00 _
R AR SR S Y%,000 000,00
3 SRR g Y%0,000 000,00 | Y0% 000000 00 99.99
¥ | SIS B RR,%00,3¥5.00 29,9%9 ¥z 00 3.y
'] STET AT
& STET TR Y93 RR3,UR¥.00 Y3259 %%, 00 3¥.%%
9 | X T AR 9,499 399,00 90,393 ¥\9.00 (5¥.9R)
s g AT c%5,9%9.00 99,9%%,9%%.00 (]RR.R37)

7. T S o

T I 1. 205 AT T AE TF BIERT TAGT qSU @il T FAEEd AR (2.9
WaAL) B Fgd FEEAT A A WH T, BAFET GHHE WS, GRATeddr Aeadd Yidded Aeaw
=R T T YRS ATAE0ia TR Hiddad (IEE) TRt H gare Aaeedl Whl adr o
forga wifeswr wwet g @i fre weetian (ppa) &1 @il s fRust g |

e A e R R e B

IehT w9 d=g fol.. Us SEBON IEREE] 31@ %ﬁ“ﬁ% T B Specialized Investment Funds
(SIF) TSI YTH TWIIehT AT Ty FEAqT 87 | 009G HAIAHT Tdl WUHT TF HFIAT AqTeish! At
grEedr (ol sfFader wreamee e W e afy € S Rremerd wafiwar Ko g
FEAH] Ged TLIA HUTH] JEFUE T g AU AUHT HEEEdr Gofl e T W Wi
TSI, AT G, o Sqaeand, qea &9 T oW HedRe Femsded! g | Alpha Plus o it
FIHIEES AEaH® e (IPO) W1 Jae RIS, $5ff T agderd 7, i sifes wers T
TAIHIHT ATEEE Y& T HEd T4 Uil R THIEaes Gge arg- wed Hul Tl 5
| FEaTT fahrE SENTEEAT I0HIae Tl T STHeTe Hed st T, FFaieed] fqaar abat
T T ANE AMD FHGH AEE ARST Wqdg wWHl g | T8 HFH [@O0a qigesd! i

HIEAT TG YR Ehl § |

)R


https://alphaplus.com.np/?utm_source=chatgpt.com
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R059/083

AR WE Sy fatres
TR HISHTIS

9 | foarw .9 3059/5R .9 050/59 gicataa gfaera

q AT ST 40,000 000,00 q0Y¥,000 000,00 q00
R EIVE DT — - o)
3 ST TR €t | 390,000 000,00 904,000 000,00 q00
¥ STTET &Y (9%,9%%,453.00) (9,3%5,5%4.00) (Qoz3)
'y STET T - - o)
% ST TR ¥¥ 5%,5R9.00 3%,%09 ¥03.00 o~
9 Y AN AR | 45,099 353,00 9% 4%9.00 qo¥
s gg qrRT (R0,3%4,%4%.00) 5,R9%,234.00 (3RY)

. TF9IC BESl sTHEATE WL,
TFIIE BTegl SAHEHC W, [l 03 A a1 W5 YY. 4R WAL &AAD] AN SAfaed A

RoR AU faabt@ qum awdds 1 IL¥THT Y At el § | I AT Jarel
forga Wit ffd 050 W@ R e T g @fw B v (ppa) TEE wEEEEl g
I YRATSATRT AR ATE9Te @it g€ (Consortium Loan Agreement) Tafd 2053 arer g

V& T T WEHHH g | ARG 81 A0 B R g 06 ) Saedqrl Thl g |

I O o L | o B L

JeFee dfds Wi R0l e gdl 9 qeiesUs, BIEHIST Rud AT qide febE qur
ftrar Had AU B TE AU G| BEAG BEGHT HYIT B TEd ATYHE TREE I
TUTETRRT AT, THFT IR I, CCTV qRel, Wiy wifdhe T areq yifvia fesire afea fFmfor qor
fershl BT | BT ST AFTAAT IRIUHT FraIoh! THTEC] BT BRI Ged HUHT TF EH
Tt TR RS B | 9 FEET BT avend! GE qaedr a9 UHR G g |

T qUicy yeve iffics
TR FISHTUSY
w9 | oo .9 R059/aR #1.9 R050/39 qieatda gfeera
q AT ST 40,000 000, 00 40,000 000 00 o)
R | AfH R S - - o}
E ST 97 goi 40,000 000,00 40,000 000,00 o)
¥ | ST (R3,3¥<,%¥9%.00) BB 93] .00 (390%)

93
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NE}(T \ HOLDINGS Eﬂ—,q/oaq
W | STEET eI - 0
& | STRAT ATERTHT 3¥,9%%,99R.00 933,335,¥45.00 (9%)
9 | ¥ wAfEreR AT (¥ 93994 %.00) 9%,398,3%R.00 (R43)
& | g3 AR (¥, 93894 %.00) 94,3993 R.00 (RU3)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Next Holdings Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s Next Holdings Limited (the
Company), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16,
2025), the Income Statement (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date, and a summary of

the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereafter referred to as “the
financial statements”).

In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and its financial
performance, changes in equity, cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standard and comply with Companies Act, 2063 and other prevailing laws.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significant
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of financial statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor’s opinion thereon
and the auditor does not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined,
assessed and explained how we addressed the following key audit matters to be communicated
in our audit report:

S.No | Key Audit Matters Auditor's Response

Investment .Valuation, Our audit approach regarding
Identification and Impairment valuation, verifications and

Investment of the Company comprises of | identifications include following:
1. several investment in quoted and |2 Reviewing of the Investment of the

unquoted equity investments. Valuation Company and its valuation with
of these investments is conducted in line reference to the applicable NFRS.
with NAS 39 read with NFRS 9 quoted

® ardipesh22@gmail.com - dipes oc aryaassociates@gmail.com

www.daassociates.com.np
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and unquoted equity investments at Fair | b. Assessing the business model
Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). adopted by the Company.

Given the variations of treatments used | ¢. For investment classified as FVTPL
for valuation of investment based on the and quoted, we ensured that Fair
nature of cash flows, business model value was conducted by obtaining
adopted and complexity of calculations, closing market rate as on
we have considered it as Key Audit 16.07.2025. And for unquoted
Matters in our Audit investment the fair value being

taken as par value of investment.

Other Matters

The Company has invested in various entity forming “subsidiary and holding”, “associate and
holding” relationship. The accounting policies are explained in notes to the accounts and
calculation of these investments are referred in notes 4.1 and 4.2 of notes to the accounts.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management report, Report of the Board
of Directors and Chairman's statement but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis or accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Organization’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
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guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than those for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional emission,
misrepresentation or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s Internal Control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management use of going concern basis of accounting and
based on audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Organization’s ability to continue as going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our audit’s report to related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to date of our audit’s report. However, future events or condition may cause the
Organization to cease to continue as going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of financial statements, including
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
event in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of our audit and significant findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may be reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other regulatory requirements

Besides the reports mentioned in the above paragraphs, we further report on the following based
on our audit, and the information and explanations provided to us.

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for
the purpose of our audit.

ii. Proper books of accounts and records as required by law have been maintained by the
organization.

iii. All the required tax deduction at sources (TDS) have been done by the organization with due
compliance of Income Tax Act, 2058.
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iv. Financial Statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts
maintained by Organization.

v. In our opinion and to the best our information and according to the explanations given to us
and from our examination of the books of the accounts of the Organization, we have not come
across any cases of accounting frauds and cases where the representatives or any employee of
the Organization has acted contrary to the provisions of law nor misappropriated any property
of the Organization or caused any loss or damage to the Organization.

Place: Kathmandu i \
Date: 2082-09-07 CA Dipesh Acharya

UDIN: 260107 A0L9 135 65(4 & Sole Practitioner
COP No: 1306
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Next Holdings Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal
Statement of Financial Position
As at 32nd Ashadh, 2082

Amount in NPR

| Group | Company

. As on 32nd As on 31st As on 32nd Ashadh As on 31st Ashadh
Basticalare Nutes Ashadh2082  Ashadh 2081 2082 2081
Assets
Non current assets
Intangible assets 3.1 11,031,102 - - -
Property and equipments 32 8,195,424 2,584,340 2,435,958 2,584,340
Investment property 18,990,000 77,072,423 18,990,000 18,990,000
Investment in Associate 14,253,573 248,739,623 14,253,573 248,739,623
Financial assets 3.3 399,580,244 50,000,000 410,080,244 77,500,000
Deferred tax assets 34 - - - -
Total non current assets 452,050,343 378,396,386 445,759,775 347,813,963
Current assets
Loans and advances 3.5 186,526,946 136,959,825 195,026,946 153,613,076
Current tax assets 3.6 5,971,534 4,906,414 5,971,534 3,686,089
Financial asets 3.3 19,787,102 12,627,038 19,787,102 12,627,038
Other assets 37 10,893,962 12,832,357 671,985 67,500
Cash and cash equivalents 3.8 4,992,396 30,974,629 4,980,448 30,800,228
Total current assets 228,171,940 198,300,263 226,438,015 200,793,932
Total assets 680,222,284 576,696,650 672,197,790 548,607,895
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital 3.90 598,500,000 357,986,000 598,500,000 357,986,000
Share premium - - - -
Advance for share capital 10,436,444 71,298,683 10,436,444 71,298,683
Reserve and surplus 16,819,354 9,509,438 16,819,354 8,790,890
Non Controlling Interest 5,447,320 23,559,192 - -
Total equity 631,203,118 462,353,312 625,755,798 438,075,573
Non Current Liabilities
Provisions 3.1 - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities 34 49,724 28,589 49,724 28,589
Other non current liabilities 3.11 44,741,859 62,871,163 44,741,859 62,598,235
Total non current liabilities 44,791,583 62,899,752 44,791,583 62,626,824
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities 3.12 4,227,582 51,443,586 1,650,409 47,905,498
Current tax liabilities 3.6 - - - -
Total current liabilities 4,227,582 51,443,586 1,650,409 47,905,498
Total equity and liabilities 680,222,284 576,696,650 672,197,790 548,607,895
The accompanying notes form an integral )

! A As per our Report of even date
part of the financial statements
Angish Ghimire Santosh Raj Nepal Rajendra Thapa CA Dipesh Acharya
Chairperson Director Director Sole Practitioner
Dipesh Acharya Associates
Chartered Accountants

Animesh Halwai Nirvaan Sharma Apsara Upretri
Director Director Director

Date: 2082/09/07
Place: Kathmandu
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Next Holdings Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended 32nd Ashadh 2082

Amount in NPR
| Group [ Company |

For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars Notes 32nd Ashadh, 2082 31st Ashadh, 2081 32nd Ashadh, 2082  31st Ashadh, 2081
Incomes

Dividend income 3.17 12,505 3,739 12,505 3,739
Net Gain / (Losses) on financial assets measured at

fair value through profit or loss 243 76,297 336,839 76,297 336,839
Gross profit of subsidiary - 23,818,933 - -
Rental Income 3.19 407,700 1,498,056 407,700 1,498,056
Interest Income 3.18 10,848,160 7,526,557 10,848,160 7,526,557
Other Income 32 1,800,000 2,863,458 1,800,000 1,985,000
Share of profit from associate 7,594,194 8,739,623 7,594,194 8,739,623
Expenses

Employee benefit expenses 3.14 (2,936,648) (794,328) (2,936,648) (782,328)
Administrative expenses 3.16 (2,003,314) (4,612,139) (1,961,671) (2,002,189)
Depreciation and amortization 32 (386,037) (381,361) (380,883) (381,361)
Loss of sale of subsidiary (718,548) - - -
Finance cost 3.15 (7,410,055) (12,817,411) (7,410,055) (4,917,608)
Profit before tax 7,284,253 26,181,967 8,049,599 12,006,328
Income tax

Income tax expenses
Deferred tax income / (expenses) 34 (21,135) (976,897) (21,135) (976,897)
Net profit / (loss) for the year 7,263,119 25,205,070 8,028,464 11,029,431

Other comprehensive income
Revaluation gain / (loss) - -

Income tax relating to above items - -

Other comprehensive income for the year - - - E

Total comprehensive income 7,263,119 25,205,070 8,028,464 11,029,431
Profit allocated to

Parent 7,309,916 18,312,289

Non controlling interest (46,798) 6,892,781
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements As per our Report of even date
Angish Ghimire Santosh Raj Nepal Rajendra Thapa CA Dipesh Acharya
Chairperson Director Director Sole Practitioner

Dipesh Acharya Associates
Chartered Accountants

Animesh Halwai Nirvaan Sharma Apsara Upretri
Director Director Director

Date: 2082/09/07
Place: Kathmandu
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Next Holdings Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal
Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended 32nd Ashadh 2082

Amount in NPR
| Group l Company I
PARTICULARS For the Year Ended For the Year Ended For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

32nd Ashadh, 2082  31st Ashadh, 2081 32nd Ashadh, 2082  31st Ashadh, 2081
A Cash flow from Operating Activities:

Profit Before tax 7,284,253 26,181,967 8,049,599 12,006,328

Adjustments for Non Cash Items and Non Operating Items

Depreciation & Impairment of PPE 386,037 381,361 380,883 381,361

Share of profit from associate (7,594,194) (8,739,623) (7,594,194) (8,739,623)
Adjustment for Changes in Operating assets and liabilities

(Increase) or Decrease in Current Assets (47,194,596) (307,436,869) (41,584,225) (301,455,757)
Increase or (Decrease) in Current Liabilities (2,474,145) 27,661,561 (1,513,231) 47,252,921

Changes in operating assets - - ¢ =
Changes in operating liabilities - - 3 2

Cash generated from operations (49,592,644) (261,951,603) (42,261,168) (250,554,770)
Income tax Paid (1,065,120) - (2,285,445) -
Net cash from operating activities A (50,657,764) (261,951,603) (44,546,613) (250,554,770)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

(Purchase) or Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (5,997,122) (45,087) (232,500) (45,087)
(Purchase) or Sale of Investment Property 58,082,423 = = =
(Purchase) or Sale of Intangible (11,031,102) - - -
Investments (115,094,194) 26,000,000 (98,094,194) 19,000,000
Net cash from investing activities B (74,039,994) 25,954,913 (98,326,694) 18,954,913

C. Cash from financing activities

Increase/(Decrease) in Capital 179,651,761 202,184,683 179,651,761 199,198,683
Increase/(Decrease) in NCI (18,065,074)

Interest Expenses

Refund of Share Advances

Unsecured Loan Increase/(Decrease) (62,871,163) 62,871,163 (62,598,235) 62,598,235
Interest and Financial charges

Net cash from financing activities C 98,715,525 265,055,846 117,053,526 261,796,918
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents A+B+C (25,982,233) 29,059,155 (25,819,780) 29,055,407
Cash & cash equivalent (Opening balance) 30,974,629 1,915,474 30,800,228 1,744,821
Cash & cash equivalent (Closing balance) 4,992,395 30,974,629 4,980,448 30,800,228

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date

Angish Ghimire Santosh Raj Nepal Rajendra Thapa CA Dipesh Acharya
Chairperson Director Director Sole Practitioner
Dipesh Acharya Associates
Chartered Accountants

Animesh Halwai Nirvaan Sharma Apsara Upretri
Director Director Director

Date: 2082/09/07
Place: Kathmandu
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Next Holdings Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal
Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended 32nd Ashadh 2082

Amount in NPR
Group
Particular Share Capital Advance for share capital  Retained Earning Fair Value Reserve Non Controlling Interest Total
As on 1st Shrawan 2080 227,100,000 - (8,802,851) - 16,666,410 234,963,559
Opening Adjustment < # = 3 =
Net Profit for the Year - 18,312,289 - 6,892,781 25,205,070
Distribution of Dividend - - - - - -
Share Capital Received 130,886,000 71,298,683 - - - 202,184,683
Transfer from Deferred Tax Reserve - - - - - -
As on 31st Ashadh 2081 357,986,000 71,298,683 9,509,438 - 23,559,192 462,353,312
Net Profit for the Year - - 7,309,916 - (46,798) 7,263,119
Distribution of Dividend = g = = = =
Share Capital Received 240,514,000 (60,862,239) - - 5,494,118 185,145,879
Transfer from Deferred Tax Reserve - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - (23,559,192) (23,559,192)
As on 32nd Ashadh 2082 598,500,000 10,436,444 16,819,354 = 5,447,320 631,203,118
Company

Particular Share Capital Advance for share capital Retained Earning  Fair Value Reserve Total
As on 1st Shrawan 2080 227,100,000 - (1,096,888) - 226,003,112
Net Profit for the Year 9,887,777 9,887,777
Distribution of Dividend =
Share Capital Received 130,886,000 71,298,683 202,184,683
Adjustments =
As on 31st Ashadh 2081 357,986,000 71,298,683 8,790,890 = 438,075,573
Net Profit for the Year 8,028,464 - 8,028,464
Distribution of Dividend -
Share Capital Received 240,514,000 (60,862,239) 179,651,761
Transfer from Deferred Tax Reserve -
Adjustments 2
As on 32nd Ashadh 2082 598,500,000 10,436,444 16,819,354 - 625,755,798 -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Santosh Raj Nepal
Director

Angish Ghimire
Chairperson

Animesh Halwai Nirvaan Sharma

Director Director
Date: 2082/09/07

Place: Kathmandu

Rajendra Thapa
Director

Apsara Upretri
Director

‘As per our Report of even date

CA Dipesh Acharya
Sole Practitioner

Dipesh Acharya Associates

Chartered Accountants
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Company
3.1 Intangible assets

Particular

Computer software

Total

Cost
Opening balance
Addition

Deletion

Total

Amortization
Amortization up to the last year
Amortization for the year

Amortization on deletion

Total

Balance As On 31.03.2081

Balance As On 32.03.2082

Group

3.1 Intangible assets under Construction

Particular

Pre operating Expense

Total

Cost

Opening balance
Addition
Deletion

15,000
11,016,102

15,000
11,016,102

Total

11,031,102

11,031,102

Amortization
Amortization up to the last year
Amortization for the year

Amortization on deletion

Total

Balance As On 31.03.2081

15,000

15,000

Balance As On 32.03.2082

11,031,102

11,031,102
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3.2 Property and Equipment

Next Holdings Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal
Notes to the Financial Statement For the Year From 1st Shrawan 2081 to 32nd Ashadh 2082
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Group
Particulars Furniture & Fixture Office Equipment C Lease Hold Total
omputer Hardware

Cost

Balance as on Shrawan 2080 - 882,800 415,770 2,385,430 3,684,000
Addition During the Year - 45,087 - - 45,087
Disposal During the year - - - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2081 - 927,887 415,770 2,385,430 3,729,087
Addition During the Year - 5,997,122 - - 5,997,122
Disposal During the year - - - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2082 - 6,925,009 415,770 2,385,430 9,726,209
Depreciation -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2080 - 266,057 139,514 357,815 763,386
Depreciation charge for the year 123,349 55,251 202,762 381,361
Disposal - - - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2081 - 389,405 194,765 560,576 1,144,747
Depreciation charge for the year 159,351 44,201 182,485 386,037
Disposal - - - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2082 - 548,756 238,966 743,061 1,530,784
WDV as on Ashadh end 2081 - 538,482 221,005 1,824,854 2,584,340
WDV as on Ashadh end 2082 - 6,376,252 176,804 1,642,369 8,195,424
Company

Particulars Furniture & Fixture Office Equipment Computer Hardware Lease Hold Total
Cost

Balance as on Shrawan 2080 - 882,800 415,770 2,385,430 3,684,000
Addition During the Year - 45,087 - - 45,087
Disposal During the year - - - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2081 - 927,887 415,770 2,385,430 3,729,087
Addition During the Year - 232,500 - - 232,500
Disposal During the year - - - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2082 - 1,160,387 415,770 2,385,430 3,961,587
Depreciation -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2080 - 266,057 139,514 357,815 763,386
Depreciation charge for the year 123,349 55,251 202,762 381,361
Disposal - - - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2081 - 389,405 194,765 560,576 1,144,747
Depreciation charge for the year 154,196 44,201 182,485 380,883
Disposal - - - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2082 - 543,602 238,966 743,061 1,525,629
WDV as on Ashadh end 2081 - 538,482 221,005 1,824,854 2,584,340
WDV as on Ashadh end 2082 - 616,785 176,804 1,642,369 2,435,958
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3.3 Financial assets Group Company
Particulars 32nd Ashad 2082  31st Ashad 2081  32nd Ashad 2082  31st Ashad 2081
Non current financial assets
Investment measured at frair value through OCI
Next Properties Pvt. Ltd. - - - 27,500,000
Prabhu Helicoptor - - - -
Shree Distillery 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
Expert Hydro Inv Pvt. Ltd 13,800,000 - 13,800,000
Nari Urja Limited - - 14,500,000
Nepal Remedies Limited 70,100,000 - 70,100,000
Siddhi Hydropower Co. Ltd 261,680,244 - 261,680,244
Security Deposit with DOED 4,000,000 - = =
Rem Work Technologies Pvt. Ltd 2 2 S
399,580,244 50,000,000 410,080,244 77,500,000
Current financial assets
Investment measured at amortised cost =
Fixed deposit - - - -
Investment measured at frair value through profit or loss 5 =
Listed equity security 16,293,102 - 16,293,102 -
Unlisted equity security - 10,500,000 - 10,500,000
Other financial assets - - -
Advance for Right Share 3,494,000 3,494,000
Rent Receivable - - -
Interest Receivable - 2,127,038 - 2,127,038
19,787,102 12,627,038 19,787,102 12,627,038
Total financial assets 419,367,346 62,627,038 429,867,346 90,127,038
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3.4 Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

Group

Particulars

Carrying Amount

Tax Base

Temporary Difference

2080-81
Property, plant and equiptment
Investment
Carried forwaded losses
Total

Tax Rate

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 31-03-2081

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 31-03-2080

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) For Period

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) P/L

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) OCI

Particulars

Carrying Amount

Tax Base

Temporary Difference

2081-82
Property, plant and equiptment
Investment
Investment Property
Carried forwaded losses
Total

8,195,424.50

8,195,424.50

2,237,060.89

2,237,060.89

(5,958,363.60)

(5,958,363.60)

Tax Rate

25%

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 32-03-2082

(1,489,590.90)

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 31-03-2081

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) For Period

1,489,590.90

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) P/L

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) OCI

Company

Particulars

Carrying Amount

Tax Base

Temporary Difference

2080-81

Property, plant and equiptment
Investment

Carried forwaded losses

Total

2,584,340

2,584,340

2,469,983

2,469,983

(114,357)

(114,357)

Tax Rate

25%

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 31-03-2081

(28,589.37)

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 31-03-2080

948,308.00

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) For Period

(976,897.37)

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) P/L

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) OCI

Particulars

Carrying Amount

Tax Base

Temporary Difference

2081-82
Property, plant and equiptment
Investment
Investment Property
Carried forwaded losses
Total

2,435,957.52

2,435,957.52

2,237,060.89

2,237,060.89

(198,896.62)

(198,896.62)

Tax Rate

25%

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 32-03-2082

(49,724)

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 31-03-2081

(28,589)

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) For Period

(21,135)

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) P/L

Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) OCI
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3.5 Loans and advances Group Company

[ PARTICULARS [ 32nd Ashad 2082 | 31st Ashad 2081] 32nd Ashad 2082 | 31st Ashad 2081 |

Advance Rent Paid - 626,500 626,500

Advance Deposit for Rent - - -

Advance For Common Office Expenses - - -

Advance for Investment : Simrik Air Limited 60,000,000 60,000,000

Advance to Next Infra Pvt. Ltd. - - -

Advance for Alpha Venture Capital 21,000,000 21,000,000

Advance For Investment- Next Properties - - -

Advance for Investment-Naari Urja Limited - 8,500,000

Advance For Investment- Nepal Remedies Pvt. Ltd - 70,100,000 70,100,000

Advance For Investment- Expert Hydro Investment Ltd. - 10,000,000 10,000,000

Advance For Investment- Happy Energy Pvt. Ltd. - 5,000,000 5,000,000

Advance For Investment- Siddhi Hydropower Co. Pvt. Ltd. 60,000,000 500,000 60,000,000 500,000

Advance For Investment- Rem work technology pvt.ltd 10,900,000 9,100,000 10,900,000 9,100,000

Advance to High Hills P Ltd - - -

Advance to Ghanashyam Bhattarai - -

Advance to Staff - - -

Other Advances 34,626,946 41,633,325 34,626,946 58,286,576
Loan to Next Properties - - -
Advance to Animesh Halwai - - -

[ Total 186,526,946 | 136,959,825 | 195,026,946 | 153,613,076 |
3.6 Current tax assets / liabilities Group Company

[ PARTICULARS | 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081] 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081 |
Current tax assets 5,971,534 4,906,414 5,971,534 3,686,089
Current tax liabilities - -

[ Total [ 5,971,534 | 4,906,414 | 5,971,534 | 3,686,089 |
3.7 Other Assets Group Company

| PARTICULARS [ 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081] 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081 |
Receivables 321,985 12,832,357 321,985 67,500
Advance Salary 350,000 - 350,000 -
Advance to suppliers 10,221,977

[ Total [ 10,893,962 | 12,832,357 | 671,985 | 67,500 |
3.8 Cash and cash equivalents Group Company

[ PARTICULARS [ 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081] 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081 |
Bank Balance 4,992,396 30,935,861 4,980,448 30,800,228
Cash in hand - 38,768 - -
Cheques in hand - - - -

[ Total 4,992,396 | 30,974,629 | 4,980,448 | 30,800,228 |
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3.9 Share Capital

Group Company
[ Particulars | 32nd Ashad 2082 | 31st Ashad 2081 | 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081 |
Authorized
120,00,000 Ordinary shares of NPR 50 each 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000
Issued
120,00,000 Ordinary shares of NPR 50 cach 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000
Paid Up Capital
11970000 Ordinary shares of NPR 50 each 598,500,000 357,986,000 598,500,000 357,986,000
[ Total | 598,500,000 | 357,986,000 | 598,500,000 | 357,986,000 |
3.10 Provisions
Group Company
[ Particulars [ 32nd Ashad 2082 | 31st Ashad 2081 | 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081 |
Provisons for Gratuity - - - -
Provisons for Doubtfull debts - - - -
Provision for Leave benefits - - - -
Other Provisions - - - -
[ Total - - E -
3.11 Other non current liabilities
Group Company
[ Particulars [ 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081 [ 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081 |
Long term loan from bank 44,741,859 48,098,235 44,741,859 48,098,235
Loan of manjushree finance - high hills 14,500,000 14,500,000
Loan from directors - -
Other long term loans and advances 272,928 -
[ Total [ 44,741,859 | 62,871,163 | 44,741,859 | 62,598,235 |
3.12 Other current liabilities
Group Company
[ Particulars | 32nd Ashad 2082 | 31st Ashad 2081 | 32nd Ashad 2082 [ 31st Ashad 2081 |
Short Term Loan = 47,000,000 = 47,000,000
Salary payable 309,990 52,477 39,720 52,477
Audit fee and certification fee payable 158,225 183,975 128,225 150,525
TDS payable 500,772 1,406,074 308,959 36,885
SST payable 14,566 6,672 14,566 6,672
Interest payable - 2,127,038 -
PF payble 500,000 - 500,000 .
Trade Payables 2,070,840 - - -
Other payable 673,189 667,349 658,939 658,939
[ Total 4,227,582 | 51,443,586 | 1,650,409 | 47,905,498 |

EE
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3.13 Net gain / (losses) on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Group Company

Particulars 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Gross realised (losses) / gains on financial assets at fair value through

profit or (loss) (A) (2,652,594) 336,839 (2,652,594) 336,839
Direct expenses (B) 842,539 - 842,539

Broker commission - - -
SEBON commission - - -
DP fee - - -
Demat expenses = = -
Average cost of purchase - - -
Net realised (losses)/gains on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (C=A-B) (3,495,133) 336,839 (3,495133) 336,839
Net unrealised (losses)/gains on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 3,571,430 - 3,571,430 -
Total 76,297 336,839 76,297 336,839
3.14 Employee benefit expenses Group Company
[Particulars | 2081-82 2080-81 208182 2080-81
Salaries and incentives 2,936,648 794,328 2,936,648 782,328
Leave encashment - - - -
Staff welfare - - - -
Staff training expenses - - - -
[Total [ 2936648 794328 2,936,648 782,328 |
3.15 Finance Cost Group Company
[Particulars | 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82  2080-81
Interest Expense 7,410,055 12,817,411 7,410,055 4,917,608
[Total [ 7,410,055 | 12,817,411 [ 7,410,055 | 4,917,608 |
3.16 Administrative expenses Group Company
[Particulars [ 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82  2080-81
Audit Fee 113,000 1,581,296 113,000 113,000
Certification fee - 22,600 22,600
Professional Fees - 71,950 71,950
AGM Expenses 85,550 89,541 85,550 89,541
Bank Charge and Commission 6,797 13,398 6,797 13,398
Fuel Expenses - 10,680 10,680
Rent Expense 1,136,804

Amc Expense 90,400 - 90,400 -
Office Expense 29,400 4,850 29,400 -
Renewal and Registration Fee 363,650 329,200 363,650 329,200
Printing & Stationery Expenses 12,550 8,060 12,550 8,060
Office Common Area Expense 600,000 29,970 600,000 29,970
Repair and maintainance 5,000 5,000
Communication & Telephone Expenses - 9,620 9,620
Lunch expenses 86,058 194,115 86,058 194,115
Land valuation and malpot fee 35,870 295,145 35,870 295,145
Loan management fee - 727,500 727,500
Web Site Development Expense 113,200 - 113,200 -
Duties & Taxes 397,680 - 397,680 -
Advertisement 20,340 2,712 20,340 2,712
Other Misc. Expenses 2,176 84,697 2,176 84,697
ITota] 1,961,671 4,612,139 | 1,961,671 | 2,002,189
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3.17 Dividend Income

Group Company
[Particulars [ 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Dividend Income 12,505 3,739 12,505 3,739
[Total | 12,505 | 3,739 | 12,505 | 3,739 |
3.18 Interest Income

Group Company
[Particulars | 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Interest from Bank 1,112,842 1,112,842 7,526,557
Interest from Infra 9,735,317 9,735,317 -
[Total [ 10,848,160 | - | 10,848,160 | 17,526,557 |
3.19 Rental Income

Group Company
[Particulars | 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Rental Income 407,700 1,498,056 407,700 1,498,056
[Total | 407,700 | 1,498,056 | 407,700 | 1,498,056 |

3.20 Other income

Group Company
[Particulars [ 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Financial Consulting Fee 1,800,000 2,863,458 1,800,000 1,985,000

Gain on Disposal of Subsidiary Company (Next
Properties)

ITotaI

[ 1,800,000 ] 2,863,458 ] 1,800,000 [ 1,985,000 |

ELS
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1.1

1.2

2.1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF ASHADH 32", 2082 (16™ JULY 2025)
Introduction

General information of the company
Next Holdings Limited (“the company™) is a limited liability company registered under the company
act,2063. The address of its registered office is Naxal, Kathmandu, Nepal.

Board of directors
The composition of Board of Directors as on 32" Ashadh 2082 is as follow:

Name Position
Angish Ghimire Chairman
Santosh Raj Nepal Director
Animesh Halwai Director
Rajendra Thapa Director
Nirvaan Sharma Director
Apsara Upreti Director

Approval of financial statements

Accompanied financial statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its meeting and have
been recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The company while complying with the reporting standards makes critical accounting judgment as having
potentially material impact on the financial statements. The significant accounting policies that relate to the
financial statements as a whole along with the judgments made are described herein.

Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific item, the policy is described within that
relevant note. NFRS for SMEs require the company to exercise judgment in making accounting estimates.
Description of such estimates has been given in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied.

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of fair value measurement of assets and liabilities.

The statement of financial position is presented on liquidity basis. Assets and liabilities are presented in
decreasing order of liquidity. All balances are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months,
except for investments in financial assets and net assets attributable to shareholders.
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2.2

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2.7,

Reporting pronouncements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards for
SMEs (NFRS for SMEs) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) — Nepal and Issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountant of Nepal (ICAN).

Accounting conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and
judgments as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed specifically.
Presentation

The financial statements have been presented in the nearest Nepalese Rupees.

For presentation of the statement of financial position, assets and liabilities have been bifurcated into current
and non- current distinction.

The statement of profit or loss has been prepared using classification ‘by nature’ method.

The cash flows from operation within the statement of cash flows have been derived using the indirect
method.

Presentation currency

Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the company.

Current and non-current distinction

Assets

Distinction of current and non-current assets are made with additional disclosure in the notes as explained.
Liabilities

Distinction of current and non-current liabilities are made with additional disclosure in the notes as
explained.

Accounting policies and accounting estimates

The company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further the company is required to make judgment in respect
of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could
materially affect the financial statements. This may later be determined that a different choice could have
been more appropriate. Accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the
financial statements. The effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

NFRS requires the company to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.
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2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

The company applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates is revised, and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes wherever
the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Reporting periods

The company follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar as reporting period.

Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting
is material.

Determination of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. When applicable, further information about the
assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the respective notes.

Limitation of NFRS implementation

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such exception
to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for serving revenue generation purposes and
are expected to be used during more than one period.

Basis of recognition

Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the assets will flow to the company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Basis of measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is measured at its cost.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition
for their intended use and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located.
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2.13.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that part will flow to the
Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de
recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in statement of profit or loss when the
item is derecognized. When replacement costs are recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property,
plant and equipment, the remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Major inspection
costs are capitalized. At each such capitalization, the remaining carrying amount of the previous cost is
derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset plus an incidental cost
related to acquisition. Depreciation is recognized in the statement of profit or loss on straight line method
based on estimated useful life of each item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects
the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

Fixed Assets are depreciated on straight line basis method on the basis of effective useful life of the assets
decided by the management. Accordingly, fixed assets are depreciated from the day the assets are ready to
be used as intended by the management.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.

Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale and the
date that the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on assets is provided on completed month basis.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose.

Basis of recognition

Intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably.

Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful economic life on a straight-line basis.
They are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The useful life of software for the current and comparative periods is estimated to be 5 years.
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2.14.

2.15.

2.15.1.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.
De-recognition

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use and subsequent disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash at
bank & cash in hand.

Payments and receipts relating to the purchase and sale of investment securities are classified as cash flows
from investing activities.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents are representative of their fair values as at the respective
reporting date.

Financial instruments

The company’s principal financial assets comprise assets held at fair value through profit and loss, assets
measured at amortized cost, loans and receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
generate a return on the investment made by shareholders. The Company’s principal financial liabilities
comprise accrued expenses and other payables which arise directly from its operations.

In accordance with NAS 39; Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the company’s interest
receivables are classified as loans and receivables. Equity securities / debentures are classified as fair value
through profit and loss. The amount attributable to shareholders is classified as equity and is carried at the
redemption amount being net asset value. Payables are designated as ‘other financial liabilities’ at amortized
cost.

Classification

The Company’s investments are classified as fair value through profit or loss, at amortized cost and loans
and receivables. They comprise:

Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognized through profit or loss. This classification includes quoted equity securities held for trading. The
dividend income from the quoted equity securities is recorded in the profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through other comprehensive income

Fair value through other comprehensive income—financial assets are classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if they are held in a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments.

B i e

R059/083




NE)(T \ HOLDINGS

¥q

2.15.2.

2.15.3.

Recognition / De- recognition

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes party to the
contractual agreement (trade date) and recognizes changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities from this date.

Investments are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the investments has expired or the
company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are derecognized when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or expired.

Realized gains and realized losses on de-recognition are determined and are included in the profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The realized gain is the difference between an instrument’s cost and disposal
amount.

Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss and other comprehensive
income

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income within net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair
value through profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Fair value is the price that would be received on sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is subsequently based on their
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period without any deduction for estimated future selling
costs. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the company is the closing price.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using
valuation techniques.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets at this category are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
amortized using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses if any. Such assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.

If evidence of impairment exists, an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognized on a financial asset carried at
amortized cost decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-
down, the write-down is reversed through profit or loss.

B i e

R059/083




NE)XT | Hotoies

¥R

2.15.4.

Receivables may include amounts for dividends, interest and trade receivables. Dividends are accrued when
the right to receive payment is established. Interest is accrued at the end of each reporting period from the
time of last payment in accordance with the policy set out in note 11(1).

Receivables are recognized and carried at amortized cost, less a provision for any uncollectable debts. An
estimate for doubtful debt is made when collection of an amount is no longer probable.

Recoverability of receivable is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an individual portfolio level, Individual
debts that are known to be uncollectable are written off when identified. An impairment provision is
recognized when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect the receivable.
Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments are considered objective evidence of impairment. The
amount of the impairment loss is the receivable carrying amount compared to the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Classification of financial assets and liabilities are as follow:

32" Ashadh, 2082
Assets at fair value Acseteat
Particulars Designated at Designated at e nets
FVTPL FVTOCI
Cash and Bank - - 4,980,448
Other Current Assets - - 671,985
Financial Assets 19,787,102 - -
Total 19.787,102 - 5652,433
31* Ashadh, 2081
Assets at fair value As§ets at
Particulars amortized costs
Designated at Designated at Loans and
FVTPL FVTOCI Receivables
Cash and Bank - - 30,800,228
Other current assets - - 67,500
Financial assets 12,627,038 - -
Total 12,627,038 - 30,867,729
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2.16.

2.17.

32" Ashadh, 2082

Liabilities at fair el .
Financial Liabilities value LU i
Designated at FVTPL Lus
Other current liabilities - 46,392,268
Total - 46,392,268

31* Ashadh, 2081

Liabilities at fair R .
Financial Liabilities value L'ab"“‘escitst‘:m“m“d
Designated at FVTPL
Other current liabilities - 47,905,498
Total - 47,905,498

Investment property

A property that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or sale in the ordinary course of business, by
the company are accounted for as investment properties.

Investment property is recognized as an asset when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
associated with the property will flow to the entity, and the cost of the property can be reliably measured.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. The cost of a purchased investment property
comprises of its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure. The cost of a self-constructed
investment property is its cost at the date when the construction or development is complete.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably.

After initial recognition, the investment property are measured at fair value and the gain / (loss) arising
from the change in fair value of such asset is recognized in profit or loss account of the period.

All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property
is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have been disposed.

Other non-current assets

It includes various advances, deposits and receivables which are not materialized within 12 months of
expiry of fiscal year.
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2.18.

2.20.

2.21.

2.22.

2.23.

Trade and other receivables

The trade receivables that fall under the classification of financial instruments are carried at amortized costs
and those other assets that do not fall within the definition are carried at cost. These instruments are
regularly monitored for impairment.

The trade and other receivable are non-interest bearing.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivable approximate their fair values at the respective reporting
dates.

The receivables that are to be settled within a year is classified as current assets and other are classified as
non-current assets.
Prepaid expenses & advances

The prepaid expenses & advances that fall under the classification of financial instruments are carried at
amortized costs and those other assets that do not fall within the definition are carried at cost. These
instruments are regularly monitored for impairment

The fair value of prepayments approximates their carrying value in the statement of financial position.
The prepayment that are to be settled within a year is classified as current assets and other are classified as
non-current assets.

Share capital

Financial instruments issues are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash,
other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Share Capital represents the nominal (par) value of ordinary equity shares that have been issued.

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regards
to dividend and shares in the company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend
declared from time to time.

Distributions

The distributions, if any to shareholders are recognized in statement of change in equity.

Other non-current liabilities

It includes various advances, deposits and receivables which are not materialized within 12 months of
expiry of fiscal year.

Trade and other payables
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2.24.

Non-financial liabilities are recorded and reported at cost based on legal and constructive obligation to the
Company.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated.

The trade and other payables are non-interest bearing.

The payables that are to be settled within a year is classified as current liabilities.

Income tax

Income tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized directly
in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment made to tax payable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset if certain criteria are met.

As per the Nepalese tax laws, in absence of taxable profits, the Company has not recognized any current
tax expenses.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period to cover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or
on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized, based on the level of future taxable profit
forecasts and tax planning strategies.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
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2.25.

2.26.

2.27.

2.28.

Income from financial instruments at fair value

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise unless an
irrevocable selection is done to charge it through Other Comprehensive Income. Once such selection is
done the changes in fair value is also charged through Other Comprehensive Income unless the assets is
derecognized. The gain or loss on disposal of available for sale financial assets is recognized directly in
profit or loss.

Realized gain is the difference between the cost price and realized price on the sale of the shares after
deducting the selling expenses.

Unrealized gain is the difference between the cost price and the closing market price available at the end of
the reporting period or the latest trading price if the closing price as on the year end is not available.

Dividend income is recognized in statement of profit or loss on the date that the company’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date.
Other income

All the income that are not qualified to be classified as revenue is treated as other income.

Net finance cost

All the interest expenses against the loans and advances and the unwinding of discount on financial
liabilities are calculated using effective interest rate method.

Interest income comprising of finance income includes interest received from bank.

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss for all financial instruments measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

Net finance cost represents the net off between the interest incomes and interest expenses.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the
expected life of the financial instrument, or a shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate, including transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Expenses

All expenses except specially mentioned are accounted on an accrual basis.
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All expenditure incurred in running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant & equipment in
a state of efficiency has been charged to revenue in arriving at the profit for the year and presented in
statement of profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, expanding or improving assets of a permanent nature by
means of which to carry on the business or for the purpose of increasing the earning capacity of the business
has been treated as capital expenditure.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the income statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
The profit earned by the Company is before income tax expense and after making provision for all known
liabilities and for the depreciation of property, plant & equipment.

Impairment

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets.

The company also reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, if any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.
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2.30.

2.31.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provision
A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount.

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money and the risks specific to the liability (when the effect of
the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company: or the present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to
settle the obligation: or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of
resources is remote.

A contingent asset is a probable asset that arises from the past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the company. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

Foreign currency transaction

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transaction in currencies other than the Company’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date. Non-monetary items carried at the fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.
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2.32.

4.1.
4.1.1

Financial risk management

The company’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The company’s overall risk management program focuses on ensuring compliance with the company’s
investment policy. It also secks to maximize the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Company
is exposed and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capital on long equity and
debt securities is limited to the fair value of those positions.

The Company uses different methods to measure and mitigate different types of risk to which it is exposed.

Other Disclosure
Disclosure for inclusion of profit from associates

Investment in Remwork Technology Private Limited

The total paid-up share capital of Remwork Technology Private Limited is Rs.20,000,000. Next Holdings
Limited has invested Rs.9,100,000 ( 91000 no. of share @100 per share) representing 45.5% of Remwork’s
equity share capital. As per NAS 28 — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures, Remwork Technology
Private Limited is considered an associate company of the Next Holdings Limited.

During the financial year 2081/81, Remwork Technology Private Limited has net loss of Rs.614,778 as per
audited financial statement. The Group’s proportionate share of the associate’s loss, amounting to
Rs.279,724, has been recognized in the consolidated financial statements and presented under the line item
“Share of profit from associate” in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Position of Remwork Technology at FY 2081-82

Particulars Amount

Total capital of Rem work 200,000
Total Investment of Next Holdings 91,000
Percentage of Investment 45.50%
Profit/Loss of Rem work (2081/06/02-2082/03/32) (614,779)
Share of Profit/Loss in group company (279,724)

Investment in Next Properties Private Limited

The total paid-up share capital of Next Properties Private Limited is Rs.50,000,000. Next Holdings Limited
has invested Rs.10,500,000 (105000 no. of share @100 per share) representing 21% of Next Properties’s
equity share capital. As per NAS 28 — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures, Next Properties Private
Limited is considered an associate company of the Next Holdings Limited

During the financial year 2081/82, Next Properties Private Limited has net loss of Rs. 24,127,154 as per
audited financial statement. The Group’s proportionate share of the associate’s loss, amounting to
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Rs.5,066,702 , has been recognized in the consolidated financial statements and presented under the line
item “Share of profit from associate” in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Position of Next Properties at FY 2081-82

Particulars Amount

Total Capital of Next Properties 500,000
Total Investment of Next Holdings 105,000
Percentage of Investment 21%
Profit/Loss of Next Properties (24,127,154)
Share of Profit/Loss in group company (5,066,702)

4.1.3 Investment in Siddhi Hydropower Company Limited

In the previous fiscal year, the Company held an investment of Rs. 240,000,000 in Siddhi Hydropower
Company Limited, representing a 38.49% ownership. Accordingly, the investment was classified as an
investment in associate as per NAS 28 — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures.

However, during the fiscal year 2081/82, due to share dilution, the Company’s ownership decreased to
18.95%, while the investment amount remained the same at Rs. 240,000,000. Consequently, the
investment no longer provides significant influence and has been reclassified from investment in associate

to financial assets in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

The details of investment in Siddhi Hydropower Company Limited for FY 2081/82 as follows:

Particulars Amount

Opening value of investment in Siddhi hydropower

(associate) 248,739,623
Current Investment 18.95%
No of Shares invested 2,400,000
Position of Siddhi Hydropower at FY 2081-82

Share Capital 1,266,541,600
Advance for share capital 159,075,327
Calls in advance 27,896,900
Reserves 131,302,225
Total Equity 1,584,816,052
No of Shares 14,535,138
Networth per share 109
Value of shares invested 261,680,244
Increase in value (Gain) 12,940,620

4.2, Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Next Holdings Limited and its

subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) for the year ended 2082 Ashad.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) issued.

The consolidation has been carried out in accordance with the following principles:

a. Line-By-Line Consolidation :
The financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis
by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses.

b. Elimination of Intragroup Transaction :
Intragroup balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intragroup
transactions, are eliminated in full.

c. Uniform Accounting Policies :
The financial statements of the parent and subsidiaries are prepared using uniform accounting policies
for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

d. Non-controlling Interest :
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the
Group’s equity. Non-controlling interests in the profit or loss of consolidated subsidiaries are also
separately presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

e. Goodwill/Reserve :
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of identifiable net assets of the acquired subsidiary.
Where the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of identifiable net assets, the difference is
recognized directly in equity as a capital reserve.

4.2.1 Investment in Subsidiary

The total paid-up share capital of Naari Urja Limited amounts to Rs. 14,500,000. Next Holdings Limited
holds an investment of Rs. 10,500,000 representing 72.5% of the equity share capital of Naari Urja
Limited. Accordingly, in line with the provisions of NFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements,
Naari Urja Limited is classified as a subsidiary company of Next Holdings Limited.

As the Company exercises control over Naari Urja Limited through majority ownership, the financial
statements of Naari Urja Limited have been consolidated with those of the Parent Company in
accordance with the requirements of NFRS 10.

4.3.  Advance for Share Capital

The company has received advance amounts towards the issue of share capital. The details of amounts
received as advance for share capital are as follows:

Particular Amount (in Rs.)
Animesh Halwai 2,100,000
Dibya Khatiwada 2,000,000
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Nirakaar Sharma 2,900,000
Nirvaan Sharma 2,900,000
Pranab Sitaula 36,444
Ram Raja Shrestha 500,000
Total 10,436,444

4.4. Related Party Disclosure

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the company that is preparing its financial statements
(the reporting entity).

Disclosure has been made in respect of the transactions in which one party has the ability to control or
exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policies / decisions of the other, irrespective
of whether a price is charged.

The company identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.

a.

The member of board of directors
The key management personnel of the entity;

b
c. The Subsidiary of the entity and its board of directors and key management personnel
d

The close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (c);

4.4.1. Board of directors

The composition of Board of Directors as on 32" Ashad 2082 is as follow:

Name Position
Angish Ghimire Chairman
Rajendra Thapa Director
Santosh Raj Nepal Director
Animesh Halwai Director
Nirvaan Sharma Director
Apsara Upreti Director

4.4.2. Shareholders holdings more than 0.5% of the share capital

The details of shareholders holdings more than 0.5% of the total share capital of the company are as follows:

Shareholder Share Amount | Percentage of Holdings
Angish Ghimire 99,801,300 16.68%
Santosh Raj Nepal 70,543,900 11.79%
Animesh Halwai 64,767,800 10.82%
Nirakaar Sharma 47,457,100 7.93%
Nirvaan Sharma 47,457,200 7.93%
Usha Gyawali 46,799,900 7.82%
Abiral Nepal 18,832,000 3.15%
Suresh Devkota 16,776,000 2.80%
Pranab Sitaula 16,604,100 2.77%
Sarit JB Rana 15,308,700 2.56%
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4.4.3.

4.4.4.

Shareholder Share Amount | Percentage of Holdings
Bijaya Rijal 14,793,600 2.47%
Yam Kumar Shrestha 11,776,000 1.97%
Dilli Ram Upreti 11,429,700 1.91%
Ashok Sitaula 11,032,800 1.84%
Diwakar Kucheria 7,654,400 1.28%
Kesari Chand Kucheria 7,654,400 1.28%
Puspa Pradhananga 6,142,800 1.03%
Rajendra Thapa 5,988,000 1%
Apsara Upreti 5,000,000 0.84%
Rajan Ghimire 4,710,400 0.79%
Bishwonath Kandel 4,710,400 0.79%
Sabal Tuladhar 4,600,000 0.77%
Dibya Khatiwada 3,500,000 0.58%
Yagya Prasad Subedi 3,500,000 0.58%
Shanta Khatri 3,179,500 0.53%
Chandika Gelal 3,000,000 0.50%

Following are the details of transaction done by related party during the fiscal year 2081.2082 :

Loan and Advances

Particulars
Payment Made Payment Receipt Balance due
Animesh Halwai 1,311,000 1,311,000
Apsara Upreti 1.500.000 1.500.000

Remuneration to Chairperson

During the fiscal year 2081/82, the Company has provided remuneration of Rs. 160,000 per month to
the Chairperson. However, the policy regarding such remuneration has not been yet approved by the
Annual General Meeting (AGM). This will be rectified in upcoming Annual General Meeting.

Market risk

Price risk

The company is exposed to equity securities price risk. This arises from investments held by the company
for which prices in the future are uncertain. Paragraph below sets out how this component of price risk is
managed and measured. Investments are classified in the statement of financial position at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital.
The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial

instruments.

The company’s policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other
financial instruments within specified limits set by the investment advisor of the company.

All of the company’s equity investments in companies are listed in NEPSE. The company’s management

monitors the status of the investments in a periodical basis as per necessity.
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Foreign exchange rate risk

The company is not exposed to fluctuations in exchange rates as all investments and transactions of the
company are made in investments denominated in NPR.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The company is exposed to interest rate risk on financial instruments with variable interest rates.

Financial instruments with fixed rates expose the company to fair value interest rate risk. The company’s
interest-bearing financial assets expose it to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. The risk is measured using sensitivity
analysis.

The company has direct exposure to interest rate changes on the valuation and cash flows of its interest-
bearing assets and liabilities. However, it may also be indirectly affected by the impact of interest rate
changes on the earnings of certain companies in which the company invests and impact on the valuation of
certain assets that use interest rates as an input in their valuation model.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause
a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

The main concentration to which the company is exposed arises from the company’s investments in debt
securities. However, there is no investment in debt securities.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, other receivable balances.

The company’s management monitors the status of the investments in a periodical basis as per necessity.
The Company can maximize the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Company is exposed.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its
obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The Company’s management monitors the company’s liquidity position on a periodic basis.

Fair value measurement
The company measures and recognizes the financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis.

The Company has no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis in the current
reporting period.

NFRS 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value hierarchy;
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly (level 2); and

(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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Fair value in an active market (level 1)

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on their quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

The company values its investments in fair market value. For the majority of its investments, the company
relies on information provided by Nepal Stock Exchange.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from NEPSE and are traded frequently.
Fair value in an inactive or unquoted market (level 2 and level 3)

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques as seen appropriate by management.

The company has adopted the level 3 valuation method for valuation of its investment in unlisted shares.
The company values such investment in cost price of investment.

Hierarchy of financial instrument are as follows:

32" Ashadh 2082 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash and cash equivalents 4,980,448 B _
Financial assets held at fair value

through profit or loss ki ) .
Other current assets B _ 671,985
Other Current liabilities ) _ 46,392,268
31'"'Ashadh 2081 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash and cash equivalent 30,800,228 R _
Financial assets held at fair value 12,627,038 _
through profit or loss )

Other current assets ) B 67,500
Other current liabilities ) ) 47,905,498

Cash flow statement

The statement of cash flows has been prepared by using the “indirect method” of preparing cash flows in
accordance with the Nepal Accounting Standard — NAS 7 on ‘Statement of cash flows’. Cash and cash
equivalents comprise of cash in hand and cash at bank.

NFRS-15: Revenue from contract with customers:
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The NASB issued a new standard for revenue recognition which overhauls the existing revenue recognition
standards. The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognized when control of goods and
service transfer to a customer. The standard requires the following five step model framework to be
followed for revenue recognition:

Identification of the contracts with the customer

Identification of the performance obligations in the contract

Determination of the transaction price

Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as identified in step ii)
Recognition of revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The new standard is effective for annual periods starting from 16 July 2021 and the company has adopted
the standard.

NFRS 16: Lease

NFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is
required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

A lessee measures right-of-use assets similarly to other non-financial assets (such as property, plant, and
equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to other financial liabilities. As a consequence, a lessee recognizes
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability. The depreciation would usually be
on a straight-line basis. In the statement of cash flows, a lessee separates the total amount of cash paid into
principal (presented within financing activities) and interest (presented within either operating or financing
activities) in accordance with NAS 7.

NFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in NAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

The new standard is effective for annual periods starting from 16 July 2021 but this standard is not applied
in this financial statement because the difference in value from transition from NAS 17 to NFRS 16 is
insignificant and the cost of implementation of NFRS 16 outweigh the benefit from it.
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